
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 

Page 1 - Council Meeting Minutes, September 26, 2022 

DATE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY OF 
MARION, STATE OF OREGON, SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 

CONVENED   The meeting convened at 7:08 p.m. with Mayor Swenson presiding. 

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Swenson Present  
Councilor Carney Present  
Councilor Cornwell Present  
Councilor Schaub Present 
Councilor Swanson Present 
Councilor Puente Present   
Councilor Cabrales Present  

Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, Assistant City Attorney 
Granum, Assistant City Administrator Row, Police Chief Pilcher, Public Works Director Stultz, 
Community Development Director Kerr, Finance Director Turley, Human Resources Director 
Gregg, Economic Development Director Johnk, Special Projects Director Wakely, City Engineer 
Garcia, Software Support Specialist Sanchez, Public Affairs and Communications Coordinator 
Moore, City Recorder Pierson 

PROCLAMATION 
Mayor Swenson proclaimed September 15 through October 15, 2022, to be "Hispanic, Latinx, and 
Indigenous Heritage Month" in the City of Woodburn, and encouraged all to join in this 
observance. 

PRESENTATION 
Mary Tennant Award – City Administrator Derickson awarded Kathy McClaskey with the Mary 
Tennant Award for Excellence in Public Service.   

Butteville Rd. Discussion - Community Development Director Kerr provided a briefing on the 
Butteville/Parr Rd. intersection and the reasons for the City to obtain jurisdiction over it.   
Carney/Swanson… direct staff to initiate the process of annexing and/or transferring jurisdiction 
of the intersection of Parr/Butteville Rd. to the City of Woodburn. The motion passed 
unanimously.  

BUSINESS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Bruce Anderson, Deputy CEO of Liberty House, stated that Liberty House appreciates the support 
and collaboration that they have had with the City on the Woodburn Family Resource Center.  He 
noted that the offices have been a huge step for Liberty House and added that they have three key 
components to their organization: the clinic for the initial assessments, Hope and Wellness for 
mental health and prevention services. 

Kyle Tarr, Prevention Program Director at Liberty House, spoke about the prevention services that 
Liberty House provides, which includes child abuse prevention trainings and online safety 
education in English and Spanish to help our communities protect children from child abuse, 
sexual abuse, and digital abuse. He added that they are grateful and incredibly appreciative of the 
support from the city of Woodburn and the local community and that the new office at the Family 
Resource Center has already proven instrumental in helping to reach more families in 2022. 

1



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 

Page 2 - Council Meeting Minutes, September 26, 2022 

 
 
 
Marge Jones, 2807 Vasser St., stated that the development over in Smith Creek over by where she 
lives has increased the traffic tremendously and has become a safety factor.  She added that more 
speed signs should be put up and more patrols in the area. She noted that theft has also become a 
problem in that area.  
 
Albert Menendez, 2806 Vasser St., stated that he has lived in Woodburn for more than 15 years 
and never had any issues with people stealing anything from his house or property but this year 
had his personal car stolen from his driveway. He questioned why laws are not being enforced in 
Woodburn.  He added that due to the Smith Creek development the amount of cars passing by 
exceeds the number of cars that they were told it was going to be. He added that there is a lot of 
noise 24/7 where people pass by with loud speakers that rattle windows and loud music as well as 
vehicles driving at a high rate of speed.  
 
Elizabeth Garcia, 355 Harvard Dr., stated that she has noticed heavy traffic and cars passing by 
with windows open and loud music around 2:00 AM, which makes it hard to sleep. She asked the 
City for help as there is heavy traffic passing by including trailers.  
 
William Brookshaw, 2665 Vasser St.,  stated that there is a speedway coming down Vasser and 
also Harvard Drive and that he would like to see parking on the west side of the road on Harvard 
Drive and on the east side on Baylor Dr. He added that people are doing donuts in the middle of 
the road. 
 
Gordon Rains, 411 Harvard Drive, stated that right now you've got cars parked on both sides of 
the street, and traffic signs that nobody pays attention to because they're hidden behind trees. He 
added that he sees people doing rolling stops and donuts in that intersection. 
 
Phyllis Bolt, 2634 Vasser St., stated that there are several hot rods that she can hear rev their 
engines and squeal off. She added that there are a lot of kids in these neighborhoods, and it's not 
safe. She suggested that gradual speed bumps be considered and that the speed go down to 20 
miles an hour instead of 25. 
 
Cesar Escuela, 2801 Ben Brown Drive, stated that he has pictures and video of people doing donuts 
in the intersection and that he has concerns for the children in the neighborhood. He added that he 
hopes the City might do something before his son or one of his neighbors kids get hurt.  
 
Police Chief Pilcher stated that they are aware of the issues brought up and that they will be doing 
extra patrol into that area because people have very reasonably and understandably complained 
about the traffic flow through that area, which was once a very quiet residential neighborhood. He 
added that they hope to move one officer back to motorcycle in the next few months and that they 
also opened an application for an officer who is trained and certified to ride a motorcycle and 
conduct traffic enforcement.  Chief Pilcher also provided information on the amount of time and 
the steps it takes to bring a newly hired police officer on.  
 
Phyllis Bolt, 2634 Vasser St., questioned why speed bumps are not an option and City 
Administrator Derickson answered that the streets are designed to standards and the City adheres 
to these building code design standards, and traffic standards. It's when we deviate from that 
standard, like with the imposition of barriers like speed bumps and humps on streets that weren't 
designed to accommodate them, that the City is then exposed and all the taxpayers are put at risk. 

2



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 

Page 3 - Council Meeting Minutes, September 26, 2022 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Woodburn City Council Meeting minutes of August 22, 2022,  
B. Woodburn City Council Meeting Executive Session minutes of August 22, 2022, 
C. Liquor License Application for Alebrijes Market LLC, 
D. Liquor License Application for Crossroad Market LLC, 
E. Acceptance of a Public Easement at 800 Kirksey St (Smith Creek Apartments), Woodburn, 

OR 97071 (Tax Lot 052W130000115), 
F. Building Activity for August 2022. 
Carney/Cornwell… adopt the Consent Agenda. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND CITY ATTORNEY ANNUAL PERFORMANCE 
EVALUATIONS 
Councilor Cabrales made a motion to table this discussion just so we can get a training on exactly 
how this is going to go out and that way we all are trained on like the goal setting and things like 
that, so I don't feel comfortable right now having a review, a performance review. 
 
Councilor Carney stated he feels comfortable having a performance review right now and that this 
is something that they have been anticipating for a while.  
 
Councilor Swanson seconded the motion.  She added that she is very qualified to fill out the 
evaluation forms but can only do that from her perspective and wonders if as a Council they are 
supposed to bring more than just their one perspective and if they should be doing 360 evaluations.  
   
City Administrator Derickson stated that the Council has an established process that has been 
applicable over the past year and if the Council wants to change that process going forward they 
can have that conversation.  He added that it is only fair to use the standards that were set in place 
at the time that he and the City Attorney worked the prior year as the ones that are applied to them 
now based on the form that the City Council is using.  
 
City Attorney Shields stated that this process was created by the Council and it has been here as 
long as he has been here. He added that it's the Council’s prerogative to revise it but that it is unfair 
to revise it now.   
 
Councilor Schaub stated that she has been on the Council for seven years and has turned in an 
evaluation each time and never thought it was a problem. She added that she has hers ready and 
asked which Councilors have completed them.  
 
Councilor Cornwell and Councilor Carney both stated that had completed the evaluations.  
  
Councilor Puente stated that he doesn’t understand the rush in getting these evaluations done and 
that each Councilor should be there to do the evaluations not just four of the six.  
 
Councilor Cornwell stated that she agrees with Councilor Puente and appreciates what Councilor 
Cabrales said about goal setting but that the evaluations actually have nothing to do with goal 
setting. She also stated that if Councilors had questions about the evaluation process that they 
could have come to the other City Councilors or to the City Attorney or City Administrator with 
those questions.  
 
Councilor Cabrales asked for some clarification on the evaluation process.  
 

3



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 

Page 4 - Council Meeting Minutes, September 26, 2022 

City Administrator Derickson answered that the way that it works is that Councilors are given in 
advance of the meeting an evaluation form to be filled out based on the prior year work that the 
Council has seen him do. He stated that during the meeting he would talk about what the 
accomplishments have been, what the challenges are, and things that are coming down the pike 
and that the evaluation for Counselor Shields is the same. He added that the City Council would 
then have an opportunity to provide feedback, constructive criticism, accolades, or whatever it is 
that Councilors feel we need to hear that will help us be better.  
 
Councilor Swanson stated that her intention is not to change the process but that she would like to 
be able to fill out a quality evaluation that brings value to their lives.   
 
Mayor Swenson stated that he has some confusion about the process, as this is different from the 
last couple of times when it was done in an executive session.  
 
City Administrator Derickson stated that the process has been consistent in the 14 years that he 
has been with the City and that it hasn’t changed at all and asked that they help him to understand 
what this delay is really about. He added that they have a lot of really positive things to talk about 
and share with the community.  
 
Mayor Swenson stated that it is an odd question to ask what the delay is about as he just wants to 
understand how to conduct this process and wants to leave a process in place that's clear and has a 
set timeline.  
  
City Administrator Derickson stated that he is happy to have his evaluation conducted the way it 
has been conducted over the last three years that Mayor Swenson has been mayor. He added that 
he is not opposed moving forward with a different kind of process and that maybe that could be a 
part of the goal setting session at the first of the year.  
 
Mayor Swenson stated that he has a motion on the floor to have a best practices training and a 
discussion about our goals that were established more than a year ago. 
 
Councilor Carney stated that he would like to ask a question.  
 
Mayor Swenson stated there is a motion on the floor to table it until we have had a training and a 
discussion about our goals and that motion has been seconded. 
 
Councilor Carney told the Mayor that he is monopolizing the conversation and added that he is 
leaving the meeting because he doesn’t want to be personally responsible for anything that happens 
here. 
 
Councilor Cornwell stated that she is leaving.  
 
Councilor Schaub stated that she is leaving as well. 
 
City Attorney Shields advised the Mayor that they had lost their quorum.  
 
The meeting ended at 8:51 p.m. due to a lack of a quorum.  

 
 
 
 

4



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 

Page 5 - Council Meeting Minutes, September 26, 2022 

APPROVED                                                            
                            ERIC SWENSON, MAYOR 
 
 
  
ATTEST                                                                               
                 Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
                 City of Woodburn, Oregon 

5



 

CITY OF WOODBURN 
Community Development Department 
                                       MEMORANDUM 
 
270 Montgomery Street        Woodburn, Oregon 97071          (503) 982-5246  
 
Date:  October 3, 2022 
   
To:   Chris Kerr, Community Development Director 
               
From:  Melissa Gitt, Building Official         
 
Subject: Building Activity for September 2022  
 
 2020 2021 2022 

No. Dollar Amount No. Dollar Amount No. Dollar Amount 
 

Single-Family Residential 0 $0 14 $3,658,708 4 $1,086,025 
Multi-Family Residential 0 $0 1 $2,841,215 11 $34,162,190 
Assisted Living Facilities 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 
Residential Adds & Alts 4 $56,540 0 $0 12 $258,231 
Industrial 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 
Commercial 4 $331,300 6 $1,386,821 7 $2,876,669 
Signs and Fences 0 $0 0 $0 1 $18,036 
Manufactured Homes 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 

TOTALS 8 $387,840 21 $7,886,744 35 $38,401,151 
Fiscal Year to Date  
(July 1 – June 30)  $6,432,046  $30,169,155  $44,114,504 

 
• Totals represent permit valuation 

    

6



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney __x____ Finance _x____ 

                              October 10, 2022 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Curtis Stultz, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the City to Provide Sanitary Sewer Service to 

Tax Lot 052W110000200 (3601 Newberg Hwy, Woodburn OR 97071) 
Woodburn Church of the Nazarene 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Woodburn Church of the Nazarene (Tax Lot 
052W110000200) to connect to the City’s public sewer system.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Woodburn Church of the Nazarene property (3601 Newberg Highway) is 
located outside of the corporate city limits of Woodburn, however,  the Amazon 
Development was required to obtain additional right-of-way and a public utility 
easement ("PUE") along their frontage as part of the improvements to the adjacent 
road system and reconstruction of the Butteville Road/OR-Hwy 219 intersection.  
 
Currently, the Church's existing septic system is located within the limits of where a 
new public utility easement is to be dedicated.  As a result, Trammel Crow 
(Amazon's Development Representative) on behalf of the Woodburn Church of 
Nazarene is requesting the City provide public sanitary sewer services to 3601 
Newberg Highway, so that the new PUE can be accommodated. 
 
A sewer main running north-south and parallel to the Church’s westerly property 
line was built recently as part of the Amazon Development, including a stub out to 
provide sewer service to 3601 Newberg Highway in the future. The new sewer main 
is going to be a public main when the Amazon development is deemed complete 
by the City. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Trammel Crow is requesting an emergency public sewer connection to 3601 
Newberg Highway in order to avoid possible grade conflicts, regulatory 
requirements, and septic system failures due to future installation of franchise 
utilities within the newly acquired public utility easement.  

7



Mayor and City Council 
October 10, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
 
Trammel Crow has agreed to obtain all approvals and permits required to 
complete the connection to the new public sewer system, including 
decommissioning the Church's current septic system and returning the property to 
its condition prior to work, or better.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no cost to the City for providing public sewer service. The property owner 
will be billed at a rate of 1.5 times the current sewer rate for residents within the City 
of Woodburn. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Approved Civil Plans of the future public sewer main and stub out to provide 
sewer service to 3601 Newberg Highway. 

B. Marion County Tax Map 052W11 
C. Marion County Permit 1304918 _ Map of Septic system  

  
 
  
 
 

8



ELEVATIO
N

 (FT)

STATION

PROFILE OF HWY 219 PUBLIC SS - EAST
VERT SCALE: 1"=6' HOR SCALE: 1"=30'

155

160

170

180

190

-0+25 0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50 2+00 2+50 3+00 3+50 4+00 4+50 5+00 5+50

12" SS-PUBLIC
L=350.00'
G=0.0031

12" SS-PUBLIC
L=350.00'
G=0.0031

EXISTING GROUND

FINISH GRADE

12
" W

A

SEE NOTE 14
15" IE OUT=160.95(E)

15" IE IN=161.05(S)
12" IE IN=161.05(N)

RIM EL=181.58
SSMH-13

SEE NOTE 14
12" IE OUT=162.14(S)
12" IE IN=162.24(N)
RIM EL=181.42
SSMH-25

X
X

X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

XX

X X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

W
W

SS
SS

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

SSSSSSSSSSSSSS
SSSSSSSSSS

WA

SSMH-25
N.14982.68
E.11213.59
STA=3+50.00

SSMH-13
N.14632.81
E.11204.02
STA=0+00.00

PROPERTY LINE
EXISTING 20.0'

UTILITY EASEMENT

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D
 A

VE

SWGR

SWGR

R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

UTILITY STATEMENT
LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND

UTILITIES HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM
DRAWINGS AND FIELD LOCATES SUPPLIED BY

THE APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES.
UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY. PRIOR
TO BEGINNING ANY CONSTRUCTION, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE EXACT

LOCATION OF EACH UTILITY.

THE EXISTING INFORMATION SHOWN ON THESE
PLANS IS PER THE SURVEY COMPLETED BY:

DATED: ___________.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY EXISTING

SITE CONDITIONS AND CONTACT THE
ENGINEER IF DISCREPANCIES ARE NOTED.

KC DEVELOPMENT
P.O. BOX 398

CAMAS, WA 98607
(360)-834-2519

06/27/2016

TBM INFORMATION
REFER TO TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY FOR
MORE INFORMATION, SHEETS C-030 -
C-031.

603030 15

FEETSCALE:

0

1 INCH = 30

BENCH MARK NOTE

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING
PROPERTY CORNERS AND BENCH MARKS.
ANY DAMAGE CAUSED BY CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITIES SHALL BE REMEDIED AT THE
CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

LEGEND
PROPERTY LINE

CURB

SEWER PIPE

STORM PIPE

WATER PIPE

CLEANOUT

SANITARY SEWER
MANHOLE

SS

SD

WA

C-631 C-632 C-633 C-634
C-635

C
-636

C
-637 C-638 C-639 C-640

C
-641

C
-642

KEY PLAN

ABBREVIATIONS
E EAST
EL ELEVATION
FF FINISH FLOOR
GH GUARD HOUSE
G GRADE
IE INVERT
L LENGTH
N NORTH
POC POINT OF CONNECTION
OWS OIL/WATER SEPERATOR

S SOUTH
STA STATION
SSCO SEWER CLEANOUT
SSMH SEWER MANHOLE
W WEST

NOTES

1. REFER TO SHEET C-010 FOR GENERAL NOTES.

2. REFER TO SHEETS C-400 - C-425 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING SITE GRADING.

3. REFER TO SHEETS C-500 - C-525 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENTS.

4. REFER TO SHEETS C-651 - C-660 FOR DETAILED WATER PLANS & PROFILES.

5. REFER TO SHEETS C-671 - C-690 FOR PUBLIC WATER EXTENSION PLANS.

6. REFER TO LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION PLANS FOR CONTINUATION OF IRRIGATION SERVICE.

7. REFER TO BUILDING AND PLUMBING PLANS FOR CONTINUATION OF SEWER SERVICE AND FOR
LOCATION OF CLEANOUT (OUTSIDE OF BUILDING).

8. UTILITY TRENCH SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD DRAWING NO. 3800-1.

9. TYPICAL PIPE BEDDING SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD DRAWING NO. 3800-2.

10. STREET CUTS AND SURFACE REPAIRS SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD
DRAWING NO. 4220-1.

11. POTABLE AND NON-POTABLE WATER LINE SEPARATION SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN
STANDARD DRAWINGS NO. 5000-6 AND 6200-4.

12. CONNECT TO SANITARY SEWER MAIN STUB AT EXISTING MANHOLE PER CITY OF WOODBURN
STANDARDS.  COORDINATE SCHEDULING AND ALL REQUIREMENTS WITH THE CITY OF WOODBURN.

13. SANITARY SEWER MAINS AND SERVICES SHALL BE POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PLASTIC (PVC), ASTM D
3034, SDR 35 WITH BELL-AND-SPIGOT ENDS FOR GASKETED JOINTS WITH ASTM F 477 ELASTOMERIC
SEALS.  PVC PIPE SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH DETECTABLE MARKING TAPE.  MAINTAIN AT LEAST 3
FEET OF COVER OVER SANITARY SEWER PIPES.

14. STANDARD SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD
DRAWING NO. 6510-3.

15. STANDARD 8 INCH TRAFFIC RATED CLEANOUT SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD
DRAWING NO. 6200-1.

16. STANDARD SEWER SERVICE LINES SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD DRAWING
NO. 6200-3.

17. IF SATURATED SOIL IS ENCOUNTERED DURING TRENCH EXCAVATION, CONTRACTOR SHALL UTILIZE
ALTERNATIVE TRENCH SECTION AS SHOWN ON SHEET C-713, DETAIL 1.

18. TESTING FOR SEWER MAINS AND MANHOLES SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN
TESTING REQUIREMENTS.

3

CEI-TB-24x36

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

PROJ. NO.

DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE

COFFMAN ENGINEERS INC.C

210598

01/21/2022

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NO:

1

A

B

C

D

A

C

D

1 2 3 4 5

2 3 4 5

www.coffman.com

ph 509.328.2994

10 N. Post Street, Suite 500
Spokane, WA 99201

PROJECT BASIE

PROJECT ADDRESS:
BUTTEVILLE ROAD
WOODBURN, MARION COUNTY, OR

DESIGN REVISIONS9/23/21C

ASI-009 PEER REVIEW11/01/21D

ASI-00911/01/21E

ASI 01411/23/21F

ASI 01512/17/21G

ASI 01812/23/21H

ASI 01901/07/22I

ASI 02201/17/22J

CONSTRUCTION SET

ASI 02301/17/22K

ASI 02501/31/221

CBM

DLS

PUBLIC SEWER
PLAN - HWY 219

C-639
M

AT
C

H
LI

N
E 

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
C

-6
40

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SE

E 
SH

EE
T 

C
-6

38

S.LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 11 AND IN THE NE 1/4  OF SECTION 14, T.5S., R.2W., W.M., CITY OF WOODBURN, MARION COUNTY, OREGON

ELEVATIO
N

 (FT)

155

160

170

180

190

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

ASI 01411/23/21F

ASI 01512/17/21G

ASI 01812/23/21H

ASI 01901/07/22I

ASI 02201/17/22J

ASI 02301/17/22K

ASI 02501/31/221

ASI 03002/18/22L

ASI 03002/18/223

ASI 02802/11/222

9

http://www.coffman.com
http://www.coffman.com
http://www.coffman.com
http://www.coffman.com
http://www.coffman.com


ELEVATIO
N

 (FT)

155

160

170

180

190

6+00 6+50 7+00 7+50 8+00 8+50 9+00 9+50

EXISTING GROUND

FINISH GRADE
SEE NOTE 14
12" IE OUT=163.32(S)
12" IE IN=163.42(N)
RIM EL=180.39
SSMH-26

12" IE OUT=164.14(S)
12" IE IN=164.24(W)
RIM EL=180.68
SSMH-27

SEE NOTE 14

12" SS-PUBLIC
L=233.87'
G=0.0031

12"X6"X12" TEE
STA=8+63.25

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

XXXXXXX

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

SSSSSS

SS

SSSSSS

SSMH-26
N.15332.55
E.11223.17

STA=7+00.00

SSMH-27
N.15566.33
E.11229.57

STA=9+33.87

EXISTING 20.0'
UTILITY EASEMENT

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED
RIGHT-OF-WAY

RIGHT-OF-WAY

12"X6"X12" TEE
SEE NOTE 16

6" PVC
L=14.97'

G=0.0200
SEE NOTE 16

CHURCH SS POC
RIM EL=181.12
6" IE OUT=164.48(W)

SSCO
SEE NOTE 15

SWGR

SWGR

R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

UTILITY STATEMENT
LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND

UTILITIES HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM
DRAWINGS AND FIELD LOCATES SUPPLIED BY

THE APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES.
UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY. PRIOR
TO BEGINNING ANY CONSTRUCTION, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE EXACT

LOCATION OF EACH UTILITY.

THE EXISTING INFORMATION SHOWN ON THESE
PLANS IS PER THE SURVEY COMPLETED BY:

DATED: ___________.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY EXISTING

SITE CONDITIONS AND CONTACT THE
ENGINEER IF DISCREPANCIES ARE NOTED.

KC DEVELOPMENT
P.O. BOX 398

CAMAS, WA 98607
(360)-834-2519

06/27/2016

TBM INFORMATION
REFER TO TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY FOR
MORE INFORMATION, SHEETS C-030 -
C-031.

603030 15

FEETSCALE:

0

1 INCH = 30

BENCH MARK NOTE

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING
PROPERTY CORNERS AND BENCH MARKS.
ANY DAMAGE CAUSED BY CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITIES SHALL BE REMEDIED AT THE
CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

LEGEND
PROPERTY LINE

CURB

SEWER PIPE

STORM PIPE

WATER PIPE

CLEANOUT

SANITARY SEWER
MANHOLE

SS

SD

WA

C-631 C-632 C-633 C-634
C-635

C
-636

C
-637 C-638 C-639 C-640

C
-641

C
-642

KEY PLAN

ABBREVIATIONS
E EAST
EL ELEVATION
FF FINISH FLOOR
GH GUARD HOUSE
G GRADE
IE INVERT
L LENGTH
N NORTH
POC POINT OF CONNECTION
OWS OIL/WATER SEPERATOR

S SOUTH
STA STATION
SSCO SEWER CLEANOUT
SSMH SEWER MANHOLE
W WEST

NOTES

1. REFER TO SHEET C-010 FOR GENERAL NOTES.

2. REFER TO SHEETS C-400 - C-425 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING SITE GRADING.

3. REFER TO SHEETS C-500 - C-525 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENTS.

4. REFER TO SHEETS C-651 - C-660 FOR DETAILED WATER PLANS & PROFILES.

5. REFER TO SHEETS C-671 - C-690 FOR PUBLIC WATER EXTENSION PLANS.

6. REFER TO LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION PLANS FOR CONTINUATION OF IRRIGATION SERVICE.

7. REFER TO BUILDING AND PLUMBING PLANS FOR CONTINUATION OF SEWER SERVICE AND FOR
LOCATION OF CLEANOUT (OUTSIDE OF BUILDING).

8. UTILITY TRENCH SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD DRAWING NO. 3800-1.

9. TYPICAL PIPE BEDDING SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD DRAWING NO. 3800-2.

10. STREET CUTS AND SURFACE REPAIRS SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD
DRAWING NO. 4220-1.

11. POTABLE AND NON-POTABLE WATER LINE SEPARATION SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN
STANDARD DRAWINGS NO. 5000-6 AND 6200-4.

12. CONNECT TO SANITARY SEWER MAIN STUB AT EXISTING MANHOLE PER CITY OF WOODBURN
STANDARDS.  COORDINATE SCHEDULING AND ALL REQUIREMENTS WITH THE CITY OF WOODBURN.

13. SANITARY SEWER MAINS AND SERVICES SHALL BE POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PLASTIC (PVC), ASTM D
3034, SDR 35 WITH BELL-AND-SPIGOT ENDS FOR GASKETED JOINTS WITH ASTM F 477 ELASTOMERIC
SEALS.  PVC PIPE SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH DETECTABLE MARKING TAPE.  MAINTAIN AT LEAST 3
FEET OF COVER OVER SANITARY SEWER PIPES.

14. STANDARD SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD
DRAWING NO. 6510-3.

15. STANDARD 8 INCH TRAFFIC RATED CLEANOUT SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD
DRAWING NO. 6200-1.

16. STANDARD SEWER SERVICE LINES SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN STANDARD DRAWING
NO. 6200-3.

17. IF SATURATED SOIL IS ENCOUNTERED DURING TRENCH EXCAVATION, CONTRACTOR SHALL UTILIZE
ALTERNATIVE TRENCH SECTION AS SHOWN ON SHEET C-713, DETAIL 1.

18. TESTING FOR SEWER MAINS AND MANHOLES SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WOODBURN
TESTING REQUIREMENTS.

3

CEI-TB-24x36

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

PROJ. NO.

DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE

COFFMAN ENGINEERS INC.C

210598

01/21/2022

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NO:

1

A

B

C

D

A

C

D

1 2 3 4 5

2 3 4 5

www.coffman.com

ph 509.328.2994

10 N. Post Street, Suite 500
Spokane, WA 99201

PROJECT BASIE

PROJECT ADDRESS:
BUTTEVILLE ROAD
WOODBURN, MARION COUNTY, OR

DESIGN REVISIONS9/23/21C

ASI-009 PEER REVIEW11/01/21D

ASI-00911/01/21E

ASI 01411/23/21F

ASI 01512/17/21G

ASI 01812/23/21H

ASI 01901/07/22I

ASI 02201/17/22J

CONSTRUCTION SET

ASI 02301/17/22K

ASI 02501/31/221

CBM

DLS

PUBLIC SEWER
PLAN - HWY 219

C-640

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SE

E 
SH

EE
T 

C
-6

39

S.LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 11 AND IN THE NE 1/4  OF SECTION 14, T.5S., R.2W., W.M., CITY OF WOODBURN, MARION COUNTY, OREGON

ELEVATIO
N

 (FT)

PROFILE OF HWY 219 PUBLIC SS - EAST
VERT SCALE: 1"=6' HOR SCALE: 1"=30'

155

160

170

180

190

MATCHLINE SEE SHEET C-642

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

ASI 01411/23/21F

ASI 01512/17/21G

ASI 01812/23/21H

ASI 01901/07/22I

ASI 02201/17/22J

ASI 02301/17/22K

ASI 02501/31/221

ASI 03002/18/22L

ASI 03002/18/223

ASI 02802/11/222

10

http://www.coffman.com
http://www.coffman.com
http://www.coffman.com
http://www.coffman.com
http://www.coffman.com
dagoga
Highlight

dagoga
Highlight

dagoga
Highlight

dagoga
Highlight

dagoga
Highlight



^̂

R!

R!

R!

<Ò<Ò<Ò<Ò<Ò<Ò
<Ò <Ò

R!R!

R!

<Ò <Ò<Ò
<Ò

R!

R!R!

R!R!

R!

<Ò<Ò R!

<Ò <Ò<Ò

3434-813551-047013.29 CH 30.01 1308.04 474.15106400 1.39 AC 20.
00

PAR 1101
PARCEL 1 10728.02 AC PAR 169

6.0
3

233.91

32
5.7

6

1.94 AC108.32

89
0.0

0

183.54

63
7.8

0

PART.  PLAT 90 -65

47
5.6

8

1608.1019
3.9

7

1564-0660
S89 31 20E   1698.15

304
.85

100
PARCEL 2
100A1
80.18 AC

14
28

.45

PART.  PLAT     2
004 -105

342
9.7

9

NOTE - REMAINDER OF THIS
PARCEL ON MAP 05 2W 14

LA
NE

R=50

60

OA
KS

60
'

DRIVE

60
'

SENECAL
CREEK

WO
OD

LA
ND

  A
VE

NU
E

TE
N

60

SENECAL
CREEK PARK

30
25

60
'

60

60AVENUE

WOODLAND

WILLOW

60

NEKIA   STREET

AVE60

60

60

60

LE
AR

Y  
RO

AD

CR
 50

9

30

KOI    LANE

BU
RL

INGTO
N NO

RT
HE

RN S
AN

TA
 FE

 RAIL
WAY

MKT
 RD

 65

PLUM          LANE

TEN OAKS LANE

VERA       LANE SEVEN OAKS LANE

BU
TT

EV
ILL

E  
 RO

AD

60

60

STATE
HWY

60 219

STATE  HIGHWAY  219
STATE HIGHWAY 219 STATE HIGHWAY 219

80

11
0

60

WO
OD

LA
ND

  A
VE

90

WOODLAND  AVE90

M.
R.

72

60

BU
TT

EV
ILL

E  
 R

OA
D

174

60

CARSON

60

55CT

BU
TT

EV
ILL

E  
 RO

AD
   M

R 6
5

REDWOOD     LANE

55

40

4050 STREETSENECAL  CREEK  PARK

AV
EN

UE

50

60

WI
LL

OW
60

CAMAS

60

25

50

60

(OLD    OREGON

FIR
ST

60 ST
RE

ET

ELECTRIC    RAILROAD  R/W)

60' MR
 65

McCORMICK5025 60'

ST

ST (OLD  OREGON   ELECTRIC  RAILROAD   R/W)

60
'

SE
CO

ND

60'

60'

BU
TT

EV
ILL

E R
OAD

60

BU
TT

EV
ILL

E  
RO

AD

80

80

80 60

MCNAUGHT

80

SE
NECAL    

CREEK    
PA

RK

SYCAMORE

60 AVE

AVENUE

60

OLIVE

50 AVEAV
ENUE

AV
ENUE

AV
EN

UE

50 5080

SY
CA

MO
RE

PA
LM

OL
IVE

60WI
LL

OW

60 MYRTLE STREET

52 5260

WOODBURN
50

GOLF    CLUB

STATE

HWY

BU
RL

ING
TO

N N
ORT

HE
RN S

AN
TA 

FE
 RA

ILW
AY

60 50219

2030

50

STATE  HWY  219

30

20

ST
AT

E H
WY

 21
9

60

B. 
N. 

S. 
F. R

AIL
WAY

50

50

RA
ILW

AY

STAFNEY     LANE

ST
AF

NEY
     

LA
NE

NO
RT

HER
N SA

NTA
 FE

BU
RL

INGTO
N

PUBLIC  ROAD

60

80 ROAD

OLD

O.E.R.R.
R/W

AR
NE

Y

75

60

JORY     STREET

AVENUE
50 60

STEVEN      STREET

WILL
OW

25 60HAWTHORNE CIRCLE

40

50

45

ALDER LANE

LINDA

WOODBURN

PINE

40

LINDA
STREET CIRCLEWO

OD
LA

ND
 AV

EN
UE

40 50 WEST
45

50

50

WEST WOODBURN PARK

MOBILE             
           E

STATES

HEMLOCK

CIRCLESTREET
50

60

WOODBURN   WEST

STREET
JUNIPER

CIRCLE

WO
OD

LA
ND

  A
VE

NU
E

MOBILE             
           E

STATES

50
ACACIA AVE

80

50

AV
EN

UE

80

AV
EN

UE

50

80

CE
DA

R

AC
AC

IA

50

60MYRTLE  STREET

50

60

60

74 74

CENTER    STREETINTE
RSTAT

E 5 F
WY

STA
CEY  

   A
LLI

SO
N     

WAY

74

100
60'

EVERGREEN

ROAD

SK
YL

ER
    

    
 D

RI
VE

60'

R=55'

JONAH                  PLACE60
'

74

60 OXFORD      STREET

60

60 REED      AVENUE

EV
ER

GR
EE

N
RO

AD

CL
EM

SO
N 

    
    

    
    

ST
RE

ET

RO
AD

174
100

S'LY SW COR
F PLOUDRE
DLC 83

NW COR
W DARST
DLC 60SE COR

H. DECHESNEDLC 48
SW CORL. VANDALL

DLC 64

W'LY NW COR
M LORE
DLC 6123

NE COR
HEIRS OF T ROY
DLC 82 121110 1/4 COR

1211
NE COR

J.F. GUERINDLC 63
NW CORJ. AUBICHON

DLC 62

SE CORL. VANDALLDLC 64
NE COR

J.B. AUBICHONDLC 62

1/4 COR
CTR SEC

1/4 COR
SW COR
W. DARST
DLC 60

NW COR
A. DUBOISDLC 98

W'LY ANG CORT. ROY HEIRSDLC 82

SE COR
J.F. GUERIN

DLC 63
SW COR
J.B. AUBICHON
DLC 62

NW CORH. PETITDLC 59

SEL CORJ.B. AUBICHONDLC 62
1110

12111/4 COR
NE COR
H. PETIT

DLC 59
1415

1314

03 03 0
500

600

1

2

3

CENTER

LOGISTICS

I -5
200

CS 23261

03 
60 

0
72

6.0
0

72
6.0

0

300.00

300.00
4608-0378

SEE MAP
052W03D

SEE MAP
052W02D

SEE MAP
052W02C

SEE MAP
052W01CC

SEE MAP
052W12B

SEE MAP
052W12C

SEE MAP
052W15

SEE MAP
052W01C

SEE MAP
052W14

SEE MAP
052W13BA

SEE MAP
052W13

SEE MAP
052W10

11AA11AB

11AC 11AD

11B

11C

12BB

12BC

MARION COUNTY, OREGON
SEC 11 T5S R2W W.M.

WOODBURNWOODBURN
05 2W 1105 2W 11

SCALE   1" = 400'

FOR ADDITIONAL MAPS VISIT OUR WEBSITE AT
www.co.marion.or.us

DISCLAIMER:  THIS MAP WAS PREPARED
FOR ASSESSMENT PURPOSES ONLY

05 2W 1105 2W 11
WOODBURNWOODBURN

05 2W 1105 2W 11

05 2W 1105 2W 11

LEGEND
LINE TYPES

CORNER TYPES

Section Corner<Ò
1516

21 22

Waterline - Non Bndry

Railroad Centerline

Historical Boundary
Easement

Taxcode Line
Map Boundary

Road Right-of-Way
Taxlot Boundary

Railroad Right-of-Way
Private Road ROW
Subdivision/Plat Bndry
Waterline - Taxlot Bndry

NUMBERS
Tax Code Number00 00 0

All acres listed are Net Acres, excluding any
portions of the taxlot within public ROWs

Acreage

Tick Marks: A tick mark in the road indicates that the
labeled dimension extends into the public ROW

0.25 AC

NOTES

200.00
175.00

PLOT DATE: 6/13/2022

CANCELLED NUMBERS
105
300

   

R! DLC Corner
<Ò 1/4 Section Cor.Ð 1/16TH Section Cor.

11



12



13



14



Page 1 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3199 
                 RESOLUTION NO. 2200 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 3199 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2200 
 

A RESOLUTION TO EXTEND AND PROVIDE MUNICIPAL SEWER SERVICES TO THE 
WOODBURN CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE PROPERTY (3601 NEWBERG HWY, 
WOODBURN, OREGON) LOCATED OUTSIDE THE CORPORATE CITY BOUNDARIES  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to City Ordinance 2405, the City has the power and 
authority to provide municipal water and/or sewer service to property outside the 
corporate City boundaries in instances where an emergency is declared by the 
City Council and the Council makes a policy determination that it is in the interests 
of the City to provide these services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as a result of redevelopment and relocation of the Butteville 
Road/OR-HWY 219 (Newberg Hwy) intersection, the Oregon Department of 
Transportation ("ODOT") required the dedication of certain land along the north 
and western boundaries of the Woodburn Church of the Nazarene property for 
new right-of-way purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, related to the intersection redevelopment and right-of-way 
dedication, the City also has a need for a Public Utility Easement ("PUE") along the 
new OR-HWY 219 frontage of the Church of the Nazarene property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City's interest in acquiring a PUE along the frontage of the 
Church's property is for purposes of being able to relocate critical utility 
infrastructure along the highway should it become necessary to enable future 
development in the west Woodburn area and the Southwest Industrial Reserve 
Area; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Church's property is located within the City's urban growth 
boundary and has a connection to the City's water service, however, it remains 
unincorporated and also does not have a municipal sewer connection, instead 
relying on an onsite septic system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to accommodate the dedication of a PUE along the 
Church's northern boundary, it is critical that the septic system on the Church's 
property be decommissioned, so that future utility installations will not impede and 
will not be impeded by the Church's current septic system's drainage field that 
would otherwise overlap with part of the PUE area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that as a result of the Butteville Road/OR-
HWY 219 intersection redevelopment, the Church's septic system must be 
decommissioned to accommodate extension of City utilities; and therefore as a 
result, a public health emergency is declared to exist and the City finds that it is in 

15



Page 2 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3199 
                 RESOLUTION NO. 2200 

its best interest to correspondingly extend and provide a municipal sewer 
connection for the church property, NOW, THEREFORE,  
 

THE CITY OF WOODBURN RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Where the City has a critical need to acquire a Public Utility 

Easement along the north boundary of the Church of the Nazarene property, 
related to the redevelopment of the Butteville Road/OR-HWY 219 intersection, 
and because such easement area would overlap and likely interfere with the 
Church's onsite septic system, the City hereby declares a public health 
emergency necessitating that municipal sewer services be extended outside city 
boundaries. 

 
Section 2.  The City Council finds that it is in the public interest that sewer 

services should be extended outside city boundaries and hereby approves 
providing municipal sewer services to the Church of the Nazarene Property (3601 
Newberg Highway, Woodburn, Oregon). 

 
Section 3.  The City Council's decision to extend sewer services outside city 

boundaries in this situation is specific to the facts and circumstances of this case 
and are justified as a result of the redevelopment of the Butteville Road/OR-HWY 
219 intersection. All costs associated with extending the municipal sewer line(s) 
and providing the service connection for the Church of the Nazarene Property 
will be borne by the developer responsible for construction of the new 
intersection.  
 
 
 
Approved as to Form:          
         City Attorney    Date 
 
 
     APPROVED:       
       Eric Swenson, Mayor 
 
Passed by the Council          
Submitted to the Mayor          
Approved by the Mayor          
Filed in the Office of the Recorder        
 
 
ATTEST:       
  Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
  City of Woodburn, Oregon 
 

16



    Agenda Item 
 

 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __x____ City Attorney ___x___ Finance __x___ 

   October 10, 2022 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council  
 
FROM: Scott C. Derickson, City Administrator 
 
SUBJECT: American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Agreement with Immanuel 

Lutheran Church for the Community Meal Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Approve the proposed ARPA Agreement with Immanuel Lutheran Church for 
their Community Meal Program effective upon execution of the Agreement, 
through July 31, 2024, (see Exhibit A).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The American Rescue Plan Act ("ARPA") is expected to provide the City with 
local fiscal recovery funds in the amount of approximately $5.8 million over the 
next two years. In October 2021, the City authorized the expenditure of ARPA 
funds to provide economic support for local nonprofit organizations, including 
funds for Immanuel Lutheran Church.    

 
The City has identified Immanuel Lutheran Church as an eligible nonprofit 
organization and an essential partner in providing vital meals and food service 
to benefit low- and moderate-income individuals, especially as the needs of the 
community have grown as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
The City desires to provide financial support for Immanuel Lutheran Church’s 
Community Meal Program in order to provide weekly meals to the Woodburn 
and outlying communities in the amount of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) over 
two years. 

 
The proposed Agreement provides the terms and conditions under which 
Immanuel Lutheran Church shall receive and may expend the ARPA funding.  
 
Authorized or allowable costs exclude expenditures for any of the following: (i) 
religious instruction or recruitment; (ii) real estate purchases; (iii) lobbying or 
political activities; (iv) costs for providing services outside of North Marion 
County; (v) indirect costs and overheard not readily assignable to Project 
Services; and (vi) any activity prohibited by state, federal, or local law or rule. 

17



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
October 10, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
DISCUSSION/ FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 
The proposed use of the ARPA funding is to support Immanuel Lutheran Church’s 
operation of the Community Meal Program where food assistance through 
weekly meals are provided to the Woodburn and outlying communities.   ARPA 
funding will be applied towards the costs incurred to host the weekly meals (i.e., 
food, supplies, etc.) served at 1036 E. Lincoln Street, Woodburn, OR. 
 
ARPA funds have been approved and are included in the adopted FY 2022-23 
budget.  The effective date of this Agreement with Immanuel Lutheran Church is 
as of the day and year specified the Agreement is executed through July 31, 
2024.  
 
The total two-year fiscal impact of the proposed Agreement is fifty thousand 
dollars ($50,000); FY #2022-23 - $25,000; FY #2023-24 - $25,000. 

18



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Immanuel Lutheran Church – Community Meal Program  Page 1 of 9 

CITY OF WOODBURN  

ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 

IMMANUEL LUTHERAN CHURCH – COMMUNITY MEAL PROGRAM 

 
 
 THIS ARPA Funded Social Services Grant Agreement ("Agreement"), dated this    day of 
__________________, 2022 ("Effective Date"), is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Woodburn, an Oregon municipal corporation (the "City"), and the Immanuel Lutheran Church, an 
Oregon nonprofit corporation ("Grantee") (together the "Parties"). 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

A. The American Rescue Plan Act ("ARPA") is expected to provide the City with local fiscal recovery 
funds in the amount of approximately $5.8 million over the next two years. In October 2021, the 
City authorized the expenditure of ARPA funds to provide economic support for local nonprofit 
organizations, including funds for Grantee.  
 

B. The City has identified Grantee as a regional nonprofit organization that is an essential partner 
in providing vital meals and food service to benefit low- and moderate-income individuals, 
especially as the needs of the community have grown as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 

C. Specifically, Grantee provides a weekly meal program to community members through the 
Community Meal Program.  
 

D. The City desires to provide financial support for Grantee for Community Meal Program in order 
to provide weekly meals to the Woodburn and outlying communities in the amount of fifty 
thousand dollars ($50,000) over two years. 
 

E. This Agreement provides for the terms and conditions under which Grantee shall receive and 
may expend the identified grant funding.  
 
THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. Purpose. The purpose of the grant funding is to support Grantee's operation of the Community 
Meal Program where food assistance through weekly meals are provided to the Woodburn and outlying 
communities (“Project Services”).   ARPA funding will be applied towards the costs incurred by Grantee 
to host the weekly meals (i.e., food, supplies, etc.) served at 1036 E. Lincoln Street, Woodburn, OR. 
 
2. Effective Date & Duration. The Effective Date of this Agreement is as of the day and year 
specified above, and unless extended or terminated earlier in accordance with its terms, will expire on 
July 31, 2024.  

 
 
 

19



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Immanuel Lutheran Church – Community Meal Program  Page 2 of 9 

3. Grant Funding. 
 
3.1. Grant Amount. In accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the City 
shall provide Grantee with fifty thousand 0/100 dollars ($50,000) ("Grant Funds") over the next 
two years to carry out the identified Project Services. The City shall disburse the Grant Funds 
from monies available through its federal ARPA funding. 
 
3.2. Disbursement Schedule. The City shall allocate and distribute the Grant Funds to 
Grantee pursuant to the following schedule: 
 

Funding Cycle Issuance Date Total Funds 
FY 2022-2023 Within 30 days of Effective Date  $25,000 
FY 2023-2024 July 1, 2023 $25,000 

*FY means the City's fiscal year that runs from July 1st – June 30th of the following calendar year.   
 
3.3. Disbursement Generally. The City shall disburse Grant Funds to Grantee for the 
allowable Project Services that are undertaken during the Term of this Agreement, subject to 
the availability of sufficient moneys in and from the ARPA funding source. Grantee agrees that it 
shall provide to the City any information or detail regarding the expenditure of Grant Funds 
prior to future disbursements or as the City may request.  
 

4. Conditions of Funding. 
 

4.1. Project Activities. Grantee is a nonprofit organization that serves as a resource to the 
Woodburn and outlying areas providing vital meals and food service to benefit low- and 
moderate-income individuals.  The Grantee has been operating the Community Meals Program 
out of the Church located at 1036 E. Lincoln Street, Woodburn, OR, with limited resources.  
Now, due to the increased demand for food assistance resulting from impacts of the 
Coronavirus pandemic, the Grantee has been faced with the needed to expand its meal program 
in order to serve a larger base of residents in need.  It is the expectation of the City that Grantee 
shall utilize the Grant Funds to facilitate and support the Community Meal Program to provide 
expanded Project Services.  

 
On or before October 1, 2022, it is expected that Grantee shall provide increased capacity to 
service a larger number of meals to area residents and that Grantee will increase its level of 
Project Services to meet the community’s needs.  
 
4.2. Annual Project Work Plans. On or prior to September 12, 2022, and again on or prior to 
July 1, 2023, Grantee shall submit to the City a Project Work Plan that outlines Grantee's 
proposed project activities for the following year. The work plan should include, at a minimum, a 
proposed budget plan for expenditure of the Grant Funding, a Program staffing plan for the 
Community Meal Program, and any performance targets or goals for the upcoming year.  
 
4.3. Eligible Use of Grant Funds. In providing Project Services under this Agreement, Grantee 
may use and expend Grant Funds for the following costs/purposes: (i) food and supplies to 
support the Community Meal Program.    
 

 

20



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Immanuel Lutheran Church – Community Meal Program  Page 3 of 9 

 
Authorized or allowable costs exclude expenditures for any of the following: (i) religious 
instruction or recruitment; (ii) real estate purchases; (iii) lobbying or political activities; (iv) costs 
for providing services outside of North Marion County; (v) indirect costs and overheard not 
readily assignable to Project Services; and (vi) any activity prohibited by state, federal, or local 
law or rule.  
 
4.4. Reporting. Grantee shall submit recurring reports and updates to the City related to the 
Project Services as follows: 
 

4.4.1. Bi-Annual.  Grantee shall submit to the City bi-annual expenditure and data 
reports that capture a summarized form of the Grant Fund expenditures of Grantee 
along with the service metric data for the Program for the previous bi-annual period. 
Along with the bi-annual reports, Grantee shall also include, as necessary, a summary of 
any material modifications Grantee has made to either its proposed budget or 
operational plan that differs significantly from its submitted Annual Project Work Plan.  
 
4.4.2. Annual.  Grantee shall submit a comprehensive annual report to the City that 
includes: (i) a narrative report that provides a description of activities, challenges, 
successes, and progress Grantee has made in providing Project Services in Woodburn; 
(ii) a data report that captures information such as level of service and number of 
community members served; and (iii) an annual expenditure report that includes a 
complete accounting of Grant Fund expenditures for the previous year. 

 
4.4.3. Reporting Schedule. Grantee shall submit the bi-annual and annual reports as 
follows: 

 
Year/Quarter Reporting Period Report Due Date 
Y1 – Bi-Annual September 12, 2022 to December 31, 2022 January 31, 2023 
Y1 – Annual Through June 30, 2023 July 31, 2023 
Y2 – Bi-Annual July 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 January 31, 2024 
Y2 – Annual Through June 30, 2024 July 31, 2024 

  
4.5. Grant Administrator. Grantee has identified its Terri Gonzalez as its designated grant 
administrator and primary point of contact for the City for matters related to this Agreement 
 

5. Grantee Representations & Warranties. Grantee represents and warrants to the City that: 
 

(a) Grantee is a non-profit entity duly organized and validly existing in the State of Oregon; 
 

(b) Grantee has all necessary rights, powers, and authority under any organizational 
documents and under Oregon law to (i) execute this Grant; (ii) incur and perform its 
obligations under this Grant; and (iii) receive financing, including the Grant Funds for 
this Project Services; and 

 
(c) There is no proceeding pending or threatened against Grantee before any court or 

governmental authority that if adversely determined would materially affect the ability 
of Grantee to carry out Project Services.  

21



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Immanuel Lutheran Church – Community Meal Program  Page 4 of 9 

 
 

The representations and warranties set forth in this Section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any 
other representations or warranties provided by Grantee.  
 
6. Responsibilities of the City.  
 

6.1. ARPA Compliance. The City retains responsibility for federal ARPA compliance 
requirements through the duration of this Agreement.  
 
6.2. Grant Administrator. The City's Community Services Director shall be the City's 
designated grant administrator, coordinator, and primary point of contact for Grantee for 
matters related to this Agreement. 
 

7. Default & Termination. 
 

7.1. Default.  
 

7.1.1. Grantee. Grantee will be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence 
of any of the following events: 

 
(a) Grantee fails to use the Grant Funds for the intended purpose described in the 

Agreement or otherwise fails to perform, observe, or discharge any of its covenants, 
agreements, or obligations under this Agreement; 
 

(b) Any representation, warranty, or statement made by Grantee in this Agreement or 
in any documents relied upon by the City in issuing the Grant Funding is untrue in 
any material respect when made; or 
 

(c) A petition, proceeding or case is filed by or against Grantee under any federal or 
state bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or other law relating to reorganization, 
liquidation, dissolution, winding up or adjustment of debts; in the case of a petition 
filed against Grantee, Grantee acquiesces to such petition or such petition is not 
dismissed within 20 calendar days after such filing, or such dismissal is not final or is 
subject to appeal; or Grantee becomes insolvent or admits its inability to pay its 
debts as they become due, or Grantee makes an assignment for the benefit of its 
creditors. 

 
7.1.2. City. The City will be in default under this Agreement if, after 30 days written 
notice specifying the nature of the default, the City fails to perform, observe, or 
discharge any of its covenants, agreements, or obligations under this Agreement; 
provided, however, the City will not be in default should the City fail to disburse Grant 
Funds because there is insufficient expenditure authority for, or moneys available from 
the ARPA funding source.  
 
 
 
 

22



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Immanuel Lutheran Church – Community Meal Program  Page 5 of 9 

 
 

7.2. Remedies. 
 

7.2.1. City Remedies. In the event Grantee is in default under Section 7.1.1, the City 
may, at its option, pursue any or all of the remedies available to it under this Agreement 
and at law or in equity, including, but not limited to: (i) termination of this Agreement 
under Section 7.3; (ii) reducing or withholding payment of Grant Funds; (iii) requiring 
Grantee to complete, at Grantee’s expense, additional activities necessary to satisfy its 
obligations or meet performance standards under this Agreement; (iv) initiation of an 
action or proceeding for damages, specific performance, or declaratory or injunctive 
relief; (v) exercise of its right of recovery of overpayments under Section 7.4; or (vi) 
declaring Grantee ineligible for the receipt of future awards from the City. These 
remedies are cumulative to the extent the remedies are not inconsistent, and the City 
may pursue any remedy or remedies singly, collectively, successively or in any order 
whatsoever. 
 
7.2.2. Grantee Remedies. In the event the City is in default under Section 7.1.2 and 
whether or not Grantee elects to terminate this Agreement, Grantee’s sole monetary 
remedy will be, within any limits set forth in this Agreement, the pro-rated amount of 
Grant Funds owing to Grantee through the date of termination, less any claims the City 
has against Grantee. In no event will the City be liable to Grantee for any expenses, 
direct, indirect, consequential or otherwise related to termination of this Agreement.  

 
7.3. Termination.  
 

7.3.1. Mutual. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by the mutual written 
consent of the Parties. 
 
7.3.2. By the City. The City may terminate this Agreement as follows: 

 
(a) At the City's discretion, upon 30 days advanced written notice to Grantee prior 

to the following fiscal year funding schedule (i.e., 30 days prior to July 1st); 
 

(b) Immediately upon written notice to Grantee should the City fail to receive 
funding or appropriations or other expenditure authority at levels sufficient in 
the City's reasonable administrative discretion to perform its obligations under 
this Agreement; 

 
(c) Immediately upon written notice to Grantee, if federal or state laws, rules, 

regulations, or ARPA guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a way that 
the City's performance under this Agreement is prohibited or the City is 
prohibited from funding this grant from the ARPA funding source; or 

 
(d) Immediately upon written notice to Grantee, if Grantee is in default under this 

Agreement and such default remains uncured for 30 days after written notice is 
provided to Grantee.  

 

23



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Immanuel Lutheran Church – Community Meal Program  Page 6 of 9 

 
7.3.3. By Grantee. Grantee may terminate this Agreement as follows: 
 

(a) At Grantee's discretion, upon 90 days advanced written notice to the City prior 
to the following fiscal year funding schedule (i.e., 90 days prior to July 1st); 
 

(b) Immediately upon written notice to the City, if the City is in default under this 
Agreement and such default remains uncured for 30 days after written notice is 
provided to the City.  

 
7.4. Recovery of Grant Funds. Grantee must return to the City, within 30 days of City's 
written demand: (i) any Grant Funds paid to Grantee that exceed the amount to which Grantee 
is entitled under this Agreement; (ii) any Grant Funds received by Grantee that remain 
unexpended or contractually committed for Project Services by December 31, 2024; or (iii) any 
Grant Funds determined by the City to be expended for purposes other than allowable Grant 
Fund Expenditures under Section 4.  
 

8. Non-Discrimination. Grantee shall provide access to its services on a basis that does not 
discriminate against any person on the basis of the person’s race, color, sex, sexual orientation, religion, 
ethnicity, national origin, age, disability, familial status, marital status, gender identity, source of 
income, veteran status, or membership in any other protected class under state or federal law. 

 
9. Limitation of Liability. Grantee shall take all necessary precautions and shall be responsible for 
the safety of its employees, volunteers, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of all services 
provided under this Agreement. The City shall not be liable for injury, damage, or loss suffered by 
Grantee, its employees, volunteers, agents, and subcontractors, not otherwise caused by the intentional 
acts of the City, its agents, employees, or contractors. 

 
10. Indemnification. Grantee shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits, 
including all legal costs and attorney fees, arising out of or in connection with Grantee's performance 
and activities under this Agreement, except for that portion of the injuries and damages caused by the 
intentional acts of the City.  

 
11. Insurance. Grantee shall ensure that the following insurance is procured and maintained for the 
duration of this Agreement in the types and amounts described as follows: 

 
11.1. Workers' Compensation Insurance. Workers’ Compensation insurance in compliance 
with ORS 656.017, which requires subject employers to provide Oregon workers’ compensation 
coverage for all their subject workers (contractors with one or more employees, and as defined 
by ORS 656.027). 
 
11.2. General Liability Insurance. Commercial General Liability Insurance with coverage 
written on a per occurrence basis, in adequate quantity to protect against legal liability arising 
out of the Project Services, but no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence. It shall include 
contractual liability coverage for the indemnity provided under this Agreement. It shall also 
provide that the City of Woodburn and its officers, agents, and employees are Additional 

24



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Immanuel Lutheran Church – Community Meal Program  Page 7 of 9 

Insureds but only with respect to Grantee's activities and services to be provided under this 
Agreement. 
11.3. Notice of cancellation or change. There shall be no cancellation, material change, 
reduction of limits or intent not to renew the insurance coverage(s) without 30 days written 
notice from Grantee or its insurer(s) to the City. 
 
11.4. Certificates of insurance. As evidence of the insurance coverages required by this 
Agreement, Grantee shall have on file and furnish upon request acceptable insurance 
certificates to the City prior to commencing the work. The certificate will specify all of the 
parties who are Additional Insureds. If requested, complete policy copies shall be provided to 
the City. Grantee shall be financially responsible for all pertinent deductibles, self-insured 
retentions and/or self-insurance. 

 
12. Relationship of the Parties. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, or is to be deemed to create 
a partnership or joint venture between the Parties. Grantee shall at no time hold itself out as a 
subsidiary or affiliate of the City. Further, nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the 
Parties, nor by any third parties, as creating a relationship between the City and any officers, employees, 
volunteers, suppliers, contractors, or subcontractors used by Grantee to carry out any activities under 
this Agreement.  
 
13. Subcontracts and Assignment; Successors and Assigns. City has selected Grantee based on its 
reputation and specialized expertise. Grantee shall not enter into any subcontracts for any of the 
activities required by this Agreement, or assign or transfer any of its interest in this Agreement without 
City’s prior written consent. 

 
The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto, and their respective successors and permitted assigns, if any. 
 
14. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The City and Grantee are the only parties to this Agreement and 
are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or 
shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly or otherwise, to 
third persons unless such third persons are individually identified by name herein and expressly 
described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement. 
 
15. Miscellaneous.  
 

15.1. Compliance with Applicable Law. Grantee shall comply with all federal, state and local 
laws, regulations, and ordinances applicable to this Agreement or to Grantee’s obligations under 
this Agreement, as those laws, regulations and ordinances may be adopted or amended from 
time to time. 
 
15.2. Records. Grantee must maintain all financial records relating to this grant Agreement in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, Grantee must maintain 
any other records, whether in paper, electronic or other form, pertinent to this Agreement in 
such a manner as to clearly document Grantee’s performance. All financial records and other 
records, whether in paper, electronic or other form, that are pertinent to this Agreement, are 
collectively referred to as “Records.” Grantee acknowledges and agrees the City and the federal 
government and their duly authorized representatives will have access to all Records to perform 

25



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Immanuel Lutheran Church – Community Meal Program  Page 8 of 9 

 
examinations and audits and make excerpts and transcripts. Grantee must retain and keep 
accessible all Records for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as may be required 
by applicable law, following termination of this Agreement, or until the conclusion of any audit, 
controversy or litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement, whichever date is later. 
 
15.3. Force Majeure. Neither the City, nor Grantee shall be held responsible for delay or 
default caused by fire, riot, acts of God, or war where such cause was beyond the reasonable 
control of the City or Grantee, respectively. Grantee shall, however, make all reasonable efforts 
to remove or eliminate such a cause of delay or default and shall, upon the cessation of the 
cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
15.4. Notices. Any notice under this Agreement must be in writing and will be effective when 
actually delivered in person or three (3) days after being deposited in the U.S. mail, registered or 
certified, postage prepaid and addressed to the party at the address stated in this Agreement or 
such other address as either party may designate by written notice to the other. Mailing 
addresses for the parties are as follows: 
 

(a) The City. City Administrator, City of Woodburn, 270 Montgomery Street, 
Woodburn, Oregon 97071. 

 
(b)        Grantee. Terri Gonzalez, Immanuel Lutheran -Community Meal Program,  

 1036 E. Lincoln Street, Woodburn OR  97071      
 

15.5. Severability. The parties agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is 
declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity 
of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the 
parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular term 
or provision held to be invalid. 
 
15.6. Governing Law; Venue; Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by 
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of 
conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between the City and 
Grantee that arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and 
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County for the State of Oregon. Grantee hereby 
agrees to the in personam jurisdiction of such court and waives any claims of an inconvenience 
forum. 
 
15.7. Merger Clause; Waiver. This Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the 
parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or 
representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. No waiver, 
consent, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either party unless in 
writing and signed by both parties. Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall 
be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. The failure of the 
City to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by the City of that 
or any other provision. 

 
 

26



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Immanuel Lutheran Church – Community Meal Program  Page 9 of 9 

 
 
The Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the day and year specified above. 

 
 

CITY OF WOODBURN,  
an Oregon municipal corporation 
 
 
 
 
       
Scott Derickson, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  
Date 

IMMANUEL LUTHERAN CHURCH, 
an Oregon nonprofit corporation 
 
 
 
 
       
By: Terri Gonzalez 
Community Meal Program 
 
 
  
Date 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator _x___ City Attorney __x___ Finance __x___ 

   October 10, 2022 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Jesse Cuomo, Community Services Director 
   
SUBJECT: Utility Assistance Program – Additional Funding 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the City Administrator to sign the enclosed agreement with Love INC of 
North Marion County for the administration of the Utility Assistance Program for 
Fiscal Years 2022-23 and 2023-24, in the amount of up to $25,000.00 annually.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In FY 15/16, the City Council approved the execution of a contract for the 
administration of a utility assistance program with Mid-Willamette Valley 
Community Action Agency (MWVCAA).  That agreement was terminated 
approximately 12 months later, after it was determined that MWVCAA did not 
provide assistance to any Woodburn residents.  
 
In November 2016, the City entered into a similar agreement with the Society of 
St. Vincent DePaul (SVDP).  Through April 2018, SVDP issued assistance totaling 
$1,675 to 23 Woodburn residents.  Through the agreement close out process SVDP 
provided the City with all of the remaining funds that haven’t been disbursed on 
behalf of utility customers. 
 
Love INC began providing assistance to utility customers on May 15, 2018 with an 
initial distribution of $5,000. Since the start of the partnership with Love INC in May 
of 2018, they have distributed $63,911.38 to 473 program participants as of August 
30, 2022. Providing an average of $135.12 of assistance per participant.  
 
It is clear that Love INC has been successful in providing assistance to significantly 
more utility customers than has been provided at any point during the program’s 
history.  
 
In addition, in February of 2022 the City Council authorized the Low Income 
Household Water Assistance Program Agreement (LIHWA) between the City of 
Woodburn and the Mid-Willamette Valley Community Action Agency 

28



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
October 10, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
(MWVCAA), and the Oregon Housing and Community Services Department.  
Through this partnership, MWVCAA has provided $15,960.00 to 54 households as 
of September 2, 2022. Which is the second highest dollar amount of vendors/cities 
participating in the LIHWA program in Marion County.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City typically issues 15-20 shut of notices each week. The majority of the 
accounts are brought current, resulting in approximately 5-8 actual weekly shut-
offs.   
 
The City’s utility assistance program is intended to provide aid to residents who 
are experiencing difficulty in paying their water/ sewer bills.  Qualifying applicants 
will be eligible to receive a maximum of $150.00 per account per 12-month 
period. During the Covid-19 pandemic, City staff have allowed allocations for up 
to $300.00 per account for those who were effected by Covid-19. Financial 
assistance will be paid directly to the City and will be applied to customers’ 
outstanding balance. Eligibility criteria established for the utility assistance 
program is as follows: 
 

• Applicant resides in the City of Woodburn and demonstrates an 
emergency need  

• Applicant is the City of Woodburn utility account holder for which 
assistance is requested or an individual who has demonstrated financial 
responsibility for the delinquent account 

• Applicant has received and can show a past due notice and/or shut-off 
notice due to utility–related fees 

• Applicant has not received more than $150.00 ($300.00 if effected by 
Covid-19) in utility assistance from this Program during the previous 12 
months  

• Applicant can show that Applicant or Applicant’s demonstrated financial 
need meets Love INC’s established criteria 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The funding for the $25,000 distribution annually for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 
has been approved and included in the adopted FY 2022-23 budget as part of 
the approved ARPA allocations.  

29



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Love INC. of North Marion County – Utility Assistance Program  Page 1 of 9 

CITY OF WOODBURN  

ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 

LOVE INC OF NORTH MARION COUNTY – UTILITY ASSISTSANCE PROGRAM 

 
 
 THIS ARPA Funded Social Services Grant Agreement ("Agreement"), dated this    day of 
__________________, 2022 ("Effective Date"), is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Woodburn, an Oregon municipal corporation (the "City"), and the Love INC of North Marion County, an 
Oregon nonprofit corporation ("Grantee") (together the "Parties"). 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

A. The American Rescue Plan Act ("ARPA") is expected to provide the City with local fiscal recovery 
funds in the amount of approximately $5.8 million over the next two years. In October 2021, the 
City authorized the expenditure of ARPA funds to provide economic support for local nonprofit 
organizations, including funds for Grantee.  
 

B. The City has identified Grantee as a regional nonprofit organization that is an essential partner 
in administrating the Utility Assistance Program, especially as the needs of the community have 
grown as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 

C. Specifically, Grantee provides utility assistance to qualifying City of Woodburn applicants who 
are experiencing difficulty paying their water/sewer bills.    
 

D. The City desires to provide financial support for Grantee for Utility Assistance Program in order 
to assist in settling the delinquent City of Woodburn utility accounts of customers that are in 
jeopardy of having their utility services shut off due to lack of payment in the amount of fifty 
thousand dollars ($50,000) over two years. 
 

E. This Agreement provides for the terms and conditions under which Grantee shall receive and 
may expend the identified grant funding.  
 
THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. Purpose. The purpose of the grant funding is to support Grantee's operation of the Utility 
Assistance Program in order to assist in settling the delinquent City of Woodburn utility accounts of 
customers that are in jeopardy of having their utility services shut off due to lack of payment  (“Project 
Services”).   ARPA funding will be applied towards the costs incurred by Grantee to manage the Utility 
Assistance Program served at 970 N. Cascade Drive Suite 100, Woodburn, OR. 
 
2. Effective Date & Duration. The Effective Date of this Agreement is as of the day and year 
specified above, and unless extended or terminated earlier in accordance with its terms, will expire on 
July 31, 2024.  

 

30



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Love INC. of North Marion County – Utility Assistance Program  Page 2 of 9 

 
 

3. Grant Funding. 
 
3.1. Grant Amount. In accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the City 
shall provide Grantee with fifty thousand 0/100 dollars ($50,000) ("Grant Funds") over the next 
two years to carry out the identified Project Services. The City shall disburse the Grant Funds 
from monies available through its federal ARPA funding. 
 
3.2. Disbursement Schedule. The City shall allocate and distribute the Grant Funds to 
Grantee pursuant to the following schedule, up to $25,000 annually will be provided to Grantee 
in distribution amounts of $5,000: 
 

Funding Cycle Issuance Date Total Funds 
FY 2022-2023 Within 30 days of Effective Date  $25,000 
FY 2023-2024 July 1, 2023 $25,000 

*FY means the City's fiscal year that runs from July 1st – June 30th of the following calendar year.   
 
3.3. Disbursement Generally. The City shall disburse Grant Funds to Grantee for the 
allowable Project Services that are undertaken during the Term of this Agreement, subject to 
the availability of sufficient moneys in and from the ARPA funding source. Grantee agrees that it 
shall provide to the City any information or detail regarding the expenditure of Grant Funds 
prior to future disbursements or as the City may request.  
 

4. Conditions of Funding. 
 

4.1. Project Activities. In servicing this Program, Grantee has the discretionary authority to pay utility 
bills and fees on behalf of Eligible Customers (defined in Section 4.2) for all City provided water 
and sewer utility services.  Payment assistance shall be provided at a maximum of $150.00 per 
account per 12-month period or up to $300.00 for those impacted by Covid-19.  Grantee shall 
ensure that all utility bill payments are made directly to the City and shall not make any direct 
financial allocations to eligible customers. 

 
4.2. Selection of Eligible Customers. Grantee shall only provide financial assistance to those 

customers that meet the following general eligibility criteria, or modified Grantee criteria 
established with the City of Woodburn’s approval: 
 
4.2.1. Applicant resides in the City of Woodburn; 
4.2.2. Applicant is the City of Woodburn utility account holder for which assistance is 

requested or an individual who has demonstrated financial responsibility for the 
delinquent account; 

4.2.3. Applicant and/or Applicant’s household has not received more than $150.00 in utility 
assistance from this Program during the previous 12 months or up to $300.00 for those 
impacted by Covid-19;   

4.2.4. Applicant has received and can show a past due notice and/or shut-off notice due to 
utility–related fees; 

4.2.5. Applicant can show that Applicant or Applicant’s demonstrated financial need meets 
Love INC’s established criteria.  

31



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Love INC. of North Marion County – Utility Assistance Program  Page 3 of 9 

An applicant that meets the selection criteria outlined above, and who can readily be assisted by 
Love INC, meaning Grantee can pay an amount needed to avoid shut-off or pay past-due amounts, 
will be designated as an “Eligible Customer.” 
 
In executing and providing Services under this Agreement, Grantee is prohibited from discriminating 
against applicants on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including 
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, military 
status, or other classes protected under Oregon or federal statutes. 

 
4.3. Eligible Use of Grant Funds. In providing Project Services under this Agreement, Grantee 
may use and expend Grant Funds for the following costs/purposes: (i) check stock, (ii) Grantee 
may retain 10% of actual financial utility assistance provided under this agreement as a 
reimbursement for program administration expenses.  
 
Authorized or allowable costs exclude expenditures for any of the following: (i) religious 
instruction or recruitment; (ii) real estate purchases; (iii) lobbying or political activities; (iv) costs 
for providing services outside of North Marion County; (v) indirect costs and overheard not 
readily assignable to Project Services; and (vi) any activity prohibited by state, federal, or local 
law or rule.  
 
4.4. Reporting. Grantee shall submit recurring reports and updates to the City related to the 
Project Services as follows: 
 

4.4.1. Bi-Annual.  Grantee shall submit to the City bi-annual expenditure and data 
reports that capture a summarized form of the Grant Fund expenditures of Grantee 
along with the service metric data for the Program for the previous bi-annual period. 
Along with the bi-annual reports, Grantee shall also include, as necessary, a summary of 
any material modifications Grantee has made to either its proposed budget or 
operational plan that differs significantly from its submitted Annual Project Work Plan.  
 
4.4.2. Annual.  Grantee shall submit a comprehensive annual report to the City that 
includes: (i) a narrative report that provides a description of activities, challenges, 
successes, and progress Grantee has made in providing Project Services in Woodburn; 
(ii) a data report that captures information such as level of service and number of 
community members served; and (iii) an annual expenditure report that includes a 
complete accounting of Grant Fund expenditures for the previous year. 

 
4.4.3. Reporting Schedule. Grantee shall submit the bi-annual and annual reports as 
follows: 

 
Year/Quarter Reporting Period Report Due Date 
Y1 – Bi-Annual September 12, 2022 to December 31, 2022 January 31, 2023 
Y1 – Annual Through June 30, 2023 July 31, 2023 
Y2 – Bi-Annual July 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 January 31, 2024 
Y2 – Annual Through June 30, 2024 July 31, 2024 

  
4.5. Grant Administrator. Grantee has identified its Rosetta Wangerin as its designated grant 
administrator and primary point of contact for the City for matters related to this Agreement 

32



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Love INC. of North Marion County – Utility Assistance Program  Page 4 of 9 

 
5. Grantee Representations & Warranties. Grantee represents and warrants to the City that: 
 

(a) Grantee is a non-profit entity duly organized and validly existing in the State of Oregon; 
 

(b) Grantee has all necessary rights, powers, and authority under any organizational 
documents and under Oregon law to (i) execute this Grant; (ii) incur and perform its 
obligations under this Grant; and (iii) receive financing, including the Grant Funds for 
this Project Services; and 

 
(c) There is no proceeding pending or threatened against Grantee before any court or 

governmental authority that if adversely determined would materially affect the ability 
of Grantee to carry out Project Services.  

 
 

The representations and warranties set forth in this Section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any 
other representations or warranties provided by Grantee.  
 
6. Responsibilities of the City.  
 

6.1. ARPA Compliance. The City retains responsibility for federal ARPA compliance 
requirements through the duration of this Agreement.  
 
6.2. Grant Administrator. The City's Community Services Director shall be the City's 
designated grant administrator, coordinator, and primary point of contact for Grantee for 
matters related to this Agreement. 
 

7. Default & Termination. 
 

7.1. Default.  
 

7.1.1. Grantee. Grantee will be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence 
of any of the following events: 

 
(a) Grantee fails to use the Grant Funds for the intended purpose described in the 

Agreement or otherwise fails to perform, observe, or discharge any of its covenants, 
agreements, or obligations under this Agreement; 
 

(b) Any representation, warranty, or statement made by Grantee in this Agreement or 
in any documents relied upon by the City in issuing the Grant Funding is untrue in 
any material respect when made; or 
 

(c) A petition, proceeding or case is filed by or against Grantee under any federal or 
state bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or other law relating to reorganization, 
liquidation, dissolution, winding up or adjustment of debts; in the case of a petition 
filed against Grantee, Grantee acquiesces to such petition or such petition is not 
dismissed within 20 calendar days after such filing, or such dismissal is not final or is 
subject to appeal; or Grantee becomes insolvent or admits its inability to pay its 

33



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Love INC. of North Marion County – Utility Assistance Program  Page 5 of 9 

debts as they become due, or Grantee makes an assignment for the benefit of its 
creditors. 

 
7.1.2. City. The City will be in default under this Agreement if, after 30 days written 
notice specifying the nature of the default, the City fails to perform, observe, or 
discharge any of its covenants, agreements, or obligations under this Agreement; 
provided, however, the City will not be in default should the City fail to disburse Grant 
Funds because there is insufficient expenditure authority for, or moneys available from 
the ARPA funding source.  
 

7.2. Remedies. 
 

7.2.1. City Remedies. In the event Grantee is in default under Section 7.1.1, the City 
may, at its option, pursue any or all of the remedies available to it under this Agreement 
and at law or in equity, including, but not limited to: (i) termination of this Agreement 
under Section 7.3; (ii) reducing or withholding payment of Grant Funds; (iii) requiring 
Grantee to complete, at Grantee’s expense, additional activities necessary to satisfy its 
obligations or meet performance standards under this Agreement; (iv) initiation of an 
action or proceeding for damages, specific performance, or declaratory or injunctive 
relief; (v) exercise of its right of recovery of overpayments under Section 7.4; or (vi) 
declaring Grantee ineligible for the receipt of future awards from the City. These 
remedies are cumulative to the extent the remedies are not inconsistent, and the City 
may pursue any remedy or remedies singly, collectively, successively or in any order 
whatsoever. 
 
7.2.2. Grantee Remedies. In the event the City is in default under Section 7.1.2 and 
whether or not Grantee elects to terminate this Agreement, Grantee’s sole monetary 
remedy will be, within any limits set forth in this Agreement, the pro-rated amount of 
Grant Funds owing to Grantee through the date of termination, less any claims the City 
has against Grantee. In no event will the City be liable to Grantee for any expenses, 
direct, indirect, consequential or otherwise related to termination of this Agreement.  

 
7.3. Termination.  
 

7.3.1. Mutual. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by the mutual written 
consent of the Parties. 
 
7.3.2. By the City. The City may terminate this Agreement as follows: 

 
(a) At the City's discretion, upon 30 days advanced written notice to Grantee prior 

to the following fiscal year funding schedule (i.e., 30 days prior to July 1st); 
 

(b) Immediately upon written notice to Grantee should the City fail to receive 
funding or appropriations or other expenditure authority at levels sufficient in 
the City's reasonable administrative discretion to perform its obligations under 
this Agreement; 

 

34



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Love INC. of North Marion County – Utility Assistance Program  Page 6 of 9 

(c) Immediately upon written notice to Grantee, if federal or state laws, rules, 
regulations, or ARPA guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a way that 
the City's performance under this Agreement is prohibited or the City is 
prohibited from funding this grant from the ARPA funding source; or 

 
(d) Immediately upon written notice to Grantee, if Grantee is in default under this 

Agreement and such default remains uncured for 30 days after written notice is 
provided to Grantee.  

 
 

7.3.3. By Grantee. Grantee may terminate this Agreement as follows: 
 

(a) At Grantee's discretion, upon 90 days advanced written notice to the City prior 
to the following fiscal year funding schedule (i.e., 90 days prior to July 1st); 
 

(b) Immediately upon written notice to the City, if the City is in default under this 
Agreement and such default remains uncured for 30 days after written notice is 
provided to the City.  

 
7.4. Recovery of Grant Funds. Grantee must return to the City, within 30 days of City's written 

demand: (i) any Grant Funds paid to Grantee that exceed the amount to which Grantee is 
entitled under this Agreement; (ii) any Grant Funds received by Grantee that remain 
unexpended or contractually committed for Project Services by December 31, 2024; or (iii) any 
Grant Funds determined by the City to be expended for purposes other than allowable Grant 
Fund Expenditures under Section 4.  
 

8. Non-Discrimination. Grantee shall provide access to its services on a basis that does not 
discriminate against any person on the basis of the person’s race, color, sex, sexual orientation, religion, 
ethnicity, national origin, age, disability, familial status, marital status, gender identity, source of 
income, veteran status, or membership in any other protected class under state or federal law. 

 
9. Limitation of Liability. Grantee shall take all necessary precautions and shall be responsible for 
the safety of its employees, volunteers, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of all services 
provided under this Agreement. The City shall not be liable for injury, damage, or loss suffered by 
Grantee, its employees, volunteers, agents, and subcontractors, not otherwise caused by the intentional 
acts of the City, its agents, employees, or contractors. 

 
10. Indemnification. Grantee shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits, 
including all legal costs and attorney fees, arising out of or in connection with Grantee's performance 
and activities under this Agreement, except for that portion of the injuries and damages caused by the 
intentional acts of the City.  

 
11. Insurance. Grantee shall ensure that the following insurance is procured and maintained for the 
duration of this Agreement in the types and amounts described as follows: 

 
11.1. Workers' Compensation Insurance. Workers’ Compensation insurance in compliance 
with ORS 656.017, which requires subject employers to provide Oregon workers’ compensation 

35



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Love INC. of North Marion County – Utility Assistance Program  Page 7 of 9 

coverage for all their subject workers (contractors with one or more employees, and as defined 
by ORS 656.027). 
 
11.2. General Liability Insurance. Commercial General Liability Insurance with coverage 
written on a per occurrence basis, in adequate quantity to protect against legal liability arising 
out of the Project Services, but no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence. It shall include 
contractual liability coverage for the indemnity provided under this Agreement. It shall also 
provide that the City of Woodburn and its officers, agents, and employees are Additional 
Insureds but only with respect to Grantee's activities and services to be provided under this 
Agreement. 
11.3. Notice of cancellation or change. There shall be no cancellation, material change, 
reduction of limits or intent not to renew the insurance coverage(s) without 30 days written 
notice from Grantee or its insurer(s) to the City. 
 
11.4. Certificates of insurance. As evidence of the insurance coverages required by this 
Agreement, Grantee shall have on file and furnish upon request acceptable insurance 
certificates to the City prior to commencing the work. The certificate will specify all of the 
parties who are Additional Insureds. If requested, complete policy copies shall be provided to 
the City. Grantee shall be financially responsible for all pertinent deductibles, self-insured 
retentions and/or self-insurance. 

 
12. Relationship of the Parties. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, or is to be deemed to create 
a partnership or joint venture between the Parties. Grantee shall at no time hold itself out as a 
subsidiary or affiliate of the City. Further, nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the 
Parties, nor by any third parties, as creating a relationship between the City and any officers, employees, 
volunteers, suppliers, contractors, or subcontractors used by Grantee to carry out any activities under 
this Agreement.  
 
13. Subcontracts and Assignment; Successors and Assigns. City has selected Grantee based on its 
reputation and specialized expertise. Grantee shall not enter into any subcontracts for any of the 
activities required by this Agreement, or assign or transfer any of its interest in this Agreement without 
City’s prior written consent. 

 
The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto, and their respective successors and permitted assigns, if any. 
 
14. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The City and Grantee are the only parties to this Agreement and 
are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or 
shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly or otherwise, to 
third persons unless such third persons are individually identified by name herein and expressly 
described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement. 
 
15. Miscellaneous.  
 

15.1. Compliance with Applicable Law. Grantee shall comply with all federal, state and local 
laws, regulations, and ordinances applicable to this Agreement or to Grantee’s obligations under 
this Agreement, as those laws, regulations and ordinances may be adopted or amended from 
time to time. 

36



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Love INC. of North Marion County – Utility Assistance Program  Page 8 of 9 

 
15.2. Records. Grantee must maintain all financial records relating to this grant Agreement in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, Grantee must maintain 
any other records, whether in paper, electronic or other form, pertinent to this Agreement in 
such a manner as to clearly document Grantee’s performance. All financial records and other 
records, whether in paper, electronic or other form, that are pertinent to this Agreement, are 
collectively referred to as “Records.” Grantee acknowledges and agrees the City and the federal 
government and their duly authorized representatives will have access to all Records to perform 
 
examinations and audits and make excerpts and transcripts. Grantee must retain and keep 
accessible all Records for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as may be required 
by applicable law, following termination of this Agreement, or until the conclusion of any audit, 
controversy or litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement, whichever date is later. 
 
15.3. Force Majeure. Neither the City, nor Grantee shall be held responsible for delay or 
default caused by fire, riot, acts of God, or war where such cause was beyond the reasonable 
control of the City or Grantee, respectively. Grantee shall, however, make all reasonable efforts 
to remove or eliminate such a cause of delay or default and shall, upon the cessation of the 
cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
15.4. Notices. Any notice under this Agreement must be in writing and will be effective when 
actually delivered in person or three (3) days after being deposited in the U.S. mail, registered or 
certified, postage prepaid and addressed to the party at the address stated in this Agreement or 
such other address as either party may designate by written notice to the other. Mailing 
addresses for the parties are as follows: 
 

(a) The City. City Administrator, City of Woodburn, 270 Montgomery Street, 
Woodburn, Oregon 97071. 

 
(b)        Grantee. Rosetta Wangerin, Love INC. of North Marion County  -Utility 

Assistance Program, 970 N. Cascade Drive Suite 100, Woodburn OR  97071 
 

15.5 Relationship of the Parties.  Grantee shall at no time hold itself out as an agent, 
subsidiary, or affiliate of the City.  This Agreement will not be construed so as to create a 
partnership between the parties or a relationship between the City and any suppliers, 
employees, contractors or subcontractors used by Grantee to carry out functions or 
Services under this Agreement. Additionally, each party shall obtain prior written approval 
from the other party prior to using the other party's trademarks, trade names, logos, or 
images (collectively, " Proprietary Marks") in connection with carrying out projects or 
activities under this Agreement. This applies to all uses regardless of whether on the web, in 
print, or in any other media. Once approved, similar uses in the same context and format 
will not require additional approval. In the event this agreement expires or terminates for 
any reason, each party shall immediately discontinue using the other Party's Proprietary 
Marks. 

 
15.6. Severability. The parties agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is 

declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the 
validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and 

37



ARPA FUNDED SOCIAL SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Love INC. of North Marion County – Utility Assistance Program  Page 9 of 9 

obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain 
the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 
15.7. Governing Law; Venue; Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by 
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles 
of conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between the City 
and Grantee that arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted 
solely and exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County for the State of Oregon. 
Grantee hereby agrees to the in personam jurisdiction of such court and waives any claims of 
an inconvenience forum. 

 
15.8. Merger Clause; Waiver. This Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the 
parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or 
representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. No waiver, 
consent, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either party unless in 
writing and signed by both parties. Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall 
be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. The failure of the 
City to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by the City of that 
or any other provision. 

 
 
 
 
The Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the day and year specified above. 

 
 

CITY OF WOODBURN,  
an Oregon municipal corporation 
 
 
 
 
       
Scott Derickson, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  
Date 

LOVE INC. OF NORTH MARION COUNTY, 
an Oregon nonprofit corporation 
 
 
 
 
       
By: Rosetta Wangerin 
Utility Assistance Program 
 
 
  
Date 

  
 

38



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney ____x__ Finance ____x_ 

   October 10, 2022 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council  
 
FROM: Scott C. Derickson, City Administrator 
 
SUBJECT: First Amendment to ARPA Funded Services Grant Agreement with 

Liberty House 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Authorize the City Administrator to sign an amendment to the ARPA Funded 
Services Grant Agreement with Liberty House to increase the amount of grant 
funding with an additional one-time payment of $120,000.00 to expand the 
scope of Project Services provided to the City and its residents.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The American Rescue Plan Act ("ARPA") is expected to provide the City with 
local fiscal recovery funds in the amount of approximately $5.8 million over the 
next two years. In October 2021, the City authorized the expenditure of ARPA 
funds to provide economic support for local nonprofit organizations, including 
funds for Liberty House.    

 
The City has identified Liberty House as an eligible nonprofit organization and an 
essential partner in providing vital services in Woodburn, especially as the needs 
of the community have grown as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The City of 
Woodburn initially entered into an ARPA Funded Services Grant Agreement 
effective February 1, 2022 (“Original Agreement”) with Liberty House with certain 
annual operating payment(s) ($40,000/year) in exchange for Liberty House’s 
administration of identified Project Services, including education and outreach 
program services a minimum of 3 days per week, 6 hours per day for the benefit 
of City residents.  
 
The City desires to provide additional financial support for Grantee in the 
amount of $120,000.00 to expand the scope of Project Services to be provided 
by Liberty House in the Original Agreement; this expansion of services would 
include Clinical services for medical assessment, forensic interviewing, and 
family support/victim advocacy for children and their caregivers.  

 

39



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
October 10, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
The proposed Amendment and Original Agreement provides the terms and 
conditions under which Liberty House shall receive and may expend the ARPA 
funding.  
 
Authorized or allowable costs exclude expenditures for any of the following: (i) 
religious instruction or recruitment; (ii) real estate purchases; (iii) lobbying or 
political activities; (iv) costs for providing services outside of North Marion 
County; (v) indirect costs and overheard not readily assignable to Project 
Services; and (vi) any activity prohibited by state, federal, or local law or rule. 
 
DISCUSSION/ FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The proposed Amendment to the ARPA Funded Services Grant Agreement is to 
support Liberty House in the recruitment, training and deployment of personnel 
for medical provider services, forensic interviewing, family support/victim 
advocacy, medical assistance and reception.   
 
Sufficient ARPA funds have been approved and are included in the adopted FY 
2022-23 budget.   
 
The total FY 2022-23 fiscal impact of the proposed Amendment is One Hundred 
and Twenty Thousand Dollars ($120,000.00). 
 

40



FIRST AMENDMENT TO ARPA FUNDED SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Liberty House 
 Page 1 of 3 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO ARPA FUNDED SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT WITH 
LIBERTY HOUSE 

 
 THIS First Amendment to the ARPA Funded Services Grant Agreement (“First 
Amendment”) is entered into between the City of Woodburn, an Oregon municipal corporation 
(the “City”) and Liberty House (collectively the “Parties”).  
 

BACKGROUND 
 

WHEREAS, the City and Liberty House previously entered into that ARPA Funded 
Services Grant Agreement effective February 1, 2022 ("Original Agreement"), whereby the City 
agreed to provide Liberty House with certain annual operating payment(s) ($40,000/year) in 
exchange for Liberty House's administration of identified Project Services, including education 
and outreach programs a minimum of 3 days per week, 6 hours per day for the benefit of City 
residents;   
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this First Amendment to expand the scope of 
Project Services to be provided by Liberty House in the Original Agreement to include Clinical 
services for medical assessment, forensic interviewing, and family support/victim advocacy for 
children and their caregivers, in exchange for the City increasing the Grant Funding with an 
additional one-time payment of $120,000.00; 
 
 WHEREAS, all terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to 
them in the Original Agreement; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree to amend the Original Agreement as follows: 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT 
 

1. Scope of Project Services & Activities. Where Sections 1 and 4.1 of the Original 
Agreement identify Project Services and Activities to be performed by Liberty House as Grantee 
and recipient of ARPA Grant Funds from the City, those sections are hereby amended to expand 
and include within their scope the following: 

 
(i) Establishing Clinical services for the medical assessment, forensic interviewing, 

and family support/victim advocacy for children and their caregivers.  
 
(ii) Increases to the Grant Funding amount will hereafter support the recruitment, 

training and deployment of the positions needed for opening Clinical services as 
well as maintaining Prevention Services in Woodburn to serve all of Woodburn 
and children and families in North Marion County. 

 
2. Grant Funding. Sections 3.1 – 3.3. of the Original Agreement are hereby amended 

such that the City agrees to increase the Grant Amount being awarded to Liberty House with an 
additional one-time payment of $120,000.00. This increased funding is being provided in 
consideration of the increased scope of services identified above. Disbursement of this additional 

41



FIRST AMENDMENT TO ARPA FUNDED SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Liberty House 
 Page 2 of 3 

one-time funding amount will be paid to Liberty House within 30 days of the effective date of this 
First Amendment.  
 

3. Except as amended by this First Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the    
Original Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
[Signature page follows] 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



FIRST AMENDMENT TO ARPA FUNDED SERVICES GRANT AGREEMENT 
Liberty House 
 Page 3 of 3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment effective as of 
the last date of signature specified below. 
 
 
CITY OF WOODBURN,  
an Oregon municipal corporation 
 
 
 
 
       
Scott Derickson, 
City Administrator 
 
 
  
Date 

 
 
 
LIBERTY HOUSE 
 an Oregon domestic nonprofit corporation 
 
 
       
 
By:   
Its:   
 
  
Date 
 
 

 
 

43


	September 26, 2022
	memo - 2022 - 9September
	270 Montgomery Street        Woodburn, Oregon 97071          (503) 982-5246

	Agenda Item - Church of the Nazarene  - Public Sewer Connection (m.g.)
	ATTACHMENTS

	Pages from Basie - Early Utility On-Site - ASI 030
	052W11 (1)
	Marion County Permit - 1304918
	Resolution Approving Sewer Connection for Nazarene Church Property (draft)
	Staff Report - 9-12-2022 - ARPA Agreement - Immanuel Lutheran Church
	ARPA  Grant Agreement - IMMANUEL LUTHERAN COMMUNITY FOOD PROGRAM
	AGENDA ITEM - September 12 - Utility Assistance Program
	ARPA  Grant Agreement - LOVE INC OF NORTH MARION COUNTY - UTILITY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
	Staff Report -9-26-22- ARPA Agreement Amendment- Liberty House (m.g.)
	ARPA Grant Agreement Liberty House First Amendment (m.g.)



